
Commission Meeting
September 11, 2025 10:00 AM
OK State Capitol, Rm. G-3



Call to Order
 
Open Meeting Act Compliance

Introductions & Announcement

Announcements, consideration, 
discussion, and possible action 
on the disqualification or recusal 
of any Commissioner or 
Commissioners pursuant to 
Ethics Rule 1.6



Consideration, discussion, and 
possible action on minutes for the 
special meeting and executive session 
held August 14, 2025

Executive Director’s Report



Compliance Update
Upcoming Reporting Schedules THE GUARDIAN SYSTEM REGISTRANTS 

Active Filers as of July 1, 2025 

Candidates & Non-Candidate Committees

Lobbyist/Liaison



Compliance Update
Reporting Highlights

98% of expected Lobbyist/Liaison reports 
were timely filed late/unfiled)

96% of expected Committee reports were 
timely filed

100% of expected Special Election reports

Proposed/Final Compliance Orders

Lobbyist/Liaison Compliance
0 Proposed Orders issued 

5 Final Order issued 

Committee Compliance
24 Proposed Orders issued

0 Final Orders issued



Recent & Upcoming Trainings & Events
Conferences

Trainings



Budget  As of September 3, 2025

- General Appropriations

- Revolving Fund – Specifically for IT/Tech Related Expenses 

- Political Subdivisions

- Revolving Fund

- Guardian Replacement Fund



Budget Actuals as of September 3, 2025

General Operations



Budget Actuals as of September 3, 2025

IS Services



Guardian 2.0    
GO-LIVE: Anticipating Week of Sept. 22
Current Guardian System Public Shut-Off: September 19 @5PM

RFD On-Site for first few weeks of Go-Live
  

On-Going RISKS
Data Conversion: Substantial Progress from last month  
Administrative Features
Data Analytics for Public Facing Reports

CONTINGENCY PLANS
No Legacy System as of October 1.  Need at least small transition 
with access to both systems administratively



Guardian 2.0    
Open External Testing: Monday, September 15

Open Testing opportunities available at-large.  Must 
RSVP to ethics@ethics.ok.gov reserve a testing slot

Training: Live/In-Person & Virtual through October
TENTATIVE DATES:

• Wed, Oct 1 In-person 
• Thursday, Oct 9 Zoom 
• Monday Oct 13 or Tuesday Oct 14 Zoom
• Thursday, Oct 23 In-person 
• Monday Oct 27 or Tuesday Oct 28 Zoom

Training Material In Development (some drafts are online now)



Public Transparency

Online Form Options & Efficiencies

Confidential Complaints

Open Records Request



Proposed Compliance Orders
236 total from 1/1/2025 thru 9/5/2025

Lobbyists Candidates PACs

236 Proposed Compliance Orders:
46 Open and Unpaid
18 Still Pending (Final order 
hasn’t issued)
172 Closed

*Late filing is most common violation

13 violators for 3x+ list – 
3 lobbyists
1 PAC
3 Former State Legislators
5 Unsuccessful Candidates
1 Current Legislator

Total of almost $30,000 in unpaid 
fines from these 13 violators alone

Administrative Actions by OEC



Rules Working Groups



Political Subdivision 
Update



Rulemaking request submitted by 
Ethics Commission Staff regarding the 

90-day provision for surplus funds in AO 
2019-01, Rules 2.48 and 2.116. 



Rulemaking request submitted by Ethics Commission Staff regarding the 90-day 
provision for surplus funds in AO 2019-01, Rules 2.48 and 2.116. 



Rulemaking request submitted by Ethics Commission Staff regarding the 90-day 
provision for surplus funds in AO 2019-01, Rules 2.48 and 2.116. 

Rule 2.48. Candidate Committee Surplus Funds. 
Surplus funds of a candidate committee are those funds not otherwise obligated following 
the election at which the office for which the candidate committee was formed has been 
determined which, in the candidate’s discretion, are not required to be used for campaign 
expenses or officeholder expenses. Such surplus funds may be: 

(A) Retained in any amount for use in a future campaign for the next succeeding term for 
the same office; 
(B) Retained for a future campaign for a different state elective office, excluding a judicial 
office; 
(C) Donated to a charitable organization as described in Section 501(c) (3) of Title 26 of the 
United States Code as it currently exists or as it may be amended; 
(D) Returned to any contributor, as long as the amount returned does not exceed the 
contributor’s aggregate contribution during the immediately preceding primary, runoff 
primary and general elections; 
(E) Contributed to a political party committee in any amount not to exceed Twenty-five 
Thousand Dollars ($25,000.00) in the aggregate; 
(F) Used to purchase item(s) for donation to a charitable organization as described in 
Section 501(c)(3) of Title 26 of the United States Code as it currently exists or as it may be 
amended; provided: 

1) the donated item(s) are sold by the charitable organization for fundraising purposes; 
2) the purchase of the item(s) for donation is reported on a Contributions and 
Expenditures Report which includes a description and cost of the item(s) purchased; 
3) the donation of the item(s) is reported on a Contributions and Expenditures Report as 
an in-kind expenditure to the charitable organization which includes a description and 
the value of the item(s) donated; and 
4) the donated item(s) may not be purchased or used by the candidate whose 
committee is donating the item, any other candidate, a committee, or officer, board 
member or employee of the charitable organization; or 
(G) Donated in accordance with the provisions of Title 60 O.S. § 381, et seq., to the State of 
Oklahoma, or, to any county, city, town or school district within the State of Oklahoma. 
Any surplus funds remaining in the candidate committee’s possession within ninety (90) 
days after the expiration of the term to which the candidate was elected or, for 
candidates who were not elected, within ninety (90) days after the second year following 
the general election, shall be deposited in the general revenue fund of the state. 

Commission Comment 
A candidate cannot determine the existence of surplus funds 
until after the election for which the funds were received. For 
that reason, this Rule cannot be applied until after the election. 
A candidate may continue to use campaign funds for 
campaign purposes and officeholder expenses and still 
determine that some funds are “surplus funds” and thus 
available for use as provided in this Rule. 
The rule allows for surplus funds to be returned to a contributor 
up to the amount contributed, but this does not include 
contributions from the candidate. Contributions cannot be 
returned to the candidate unless the candidate executed a 
written loan document with the committee at the time of the 
loan, and deposited the funds from the loan into the 
committee’s depository at the time of the loan. See also Rule 
2.67, prohibiting repayment to a candidate except in the case 
of a properly documented loan to the candidate committee. 
This Rule also provides that surplus funds remaining in the 
candidate committee’s possession ninety (90) days after the 
expiration of the term to which the candidate was elected are 
forfeited to the State. For candidates who are not elected, the 
ninety (90) day period begins two years after the general 
election. 



Advisory Opinion 2019-01: A candidate committee without funds 
remaining in its campaign depository must dissolve by the specified 
mandatory dissolution date as established in Rule 2.116. 
However, a candidate committee with funds remaining in its 
campaign depository on the specified mandatory dissolution date as 
established in Rule 2.116 are, from the mandatory dissolution date and 
on, no longer permitted to (1) receive contributions, (2) contribute to 
other candidate committees, (3) make campaign expenditures, or (4) 
make operating expenditures. However, such committees may make 
the following expenditures: 

a. Candidate committees of elected officers may make 
expenditures (1) for officeholder expenses until his/her term 
expires or the office is vacated and (2) of surplus funds as 
provided for in Rule 2.48 for ninety (90) days after the 
officeholder’s term is completed or vacated; or 
b. Candidate committees of unelected candidates may make 
expenditures of surplus funds as provided for in Rule 2.48 for 
ninety (90) days after the second year following the general 
election for which the committee was formed. 

After the ninety (90) day period has ended, any remaining funds must 
be deposited in the state’s general revenue fund. 

Commission Comment 
Candidate committees may file a final report and dissolve only when 
there are no funds remaining in the committee. 
Candidate committees are required to terminate their existence by a 
date certain. Candidates, including candidates losing an election, 
have a continuing duty to timely submit Reports of Contributions and 
Expenditures, even if the candidate committee has no activity, until 
the candidate committee is dissolved to the satisfaction of the 
Commission and a Final Report of Contributions and Expenditures is 
filed. See, also, Rule 2.48 for candidates who are not elected. 
The mandatory time frames for dissolution of candidate committees 
are based on the term of office for the office that the candidate serves. 
This ensures the timely dissolution of candidate committees and levels 
the playing field for successful candidates and unsuccessful 
candidates. The committee may dissolve after resolving any debt. See 
Rule 2.117. 

Rule 2.116. Dissolution of Candidate Committee. 
A candidate committee may dissolve at any time by filing a Final 
Report of Contributions and Expenditures that shows no funds 
remaining in the committee. A candidate committee shall dissolve 
no later than two (2) years after the general election for an office 
with a two-year term, no later than four (4) years after the general 
election for an office with a four-year term, and no later than six (6) 
years after the general election for an office with a six-year term, if 
not required to dissolve sooner by law or these Rules. 

Rulemaking request submitted by Ethics Commission Staff regarding the 90-day 
provision for surplus funds in AO 2019-01, Rules 2.48 and 2.116. 



Rulemaking request submitted by Ethics Commission Staff regarding the 90-day 
provision for surplus funds in AO 2019-01, Rules 2.48 and 2.116. 

Rule 2.78. Exploratory Activities.
An individual may conduct exploratory activities, such as polling and other techniques designed 
exclusively to assist the individual in making a decision as to whether to seek any state office or 
offices. The individual may accept contributions, subject to the limits in these Rules, and make 
expenditures limited to exploratory activities without designating a candidate committee; 
provided, however, the individual shall keep or cause to be kept all records required of a candidate 
committee. Provided further, once an individual has accepted or expended more than Twenty-
five Thousand Dollars ($25,000.00) for exploratory activities for a statewide office or Ten Thousand 
Dollars ($10,000.00) for any other state office, the individual either shall become a candidate and 
file a Statement of Organization as required by these Rules, or cease all exploratory activities.
If the individual becomes a candidate and forms a candidate committee, all contributions 
received and expenditures made for exploratory activities shall be subject to maximum 
contribution limits and shall be included in the committee’s first Report of Contributions and 
Expenditures. No individual may conduct exploratory activities for a state office or offices as 
provided in this section more than one time between regular general elections for state offices.

Commission Comment
In some situations, individuals wish to “test the waters” for a political campaign and, after doing so, 
decide not to seek an office. This Rule permits those who engage in such exploratory activities to 
do so without having to file a Statement of Organization with the Commission, provided they 
comply with the requirements of the Rule.
Essentially, candidates engaging in exploratory activities keep the same records as the Rules 
require for candidate committees. Furthermore, the limits that apply to candidate committees 
apply to exploratory activities.
If, after conducting exploratory activities, the individual decides not to become a candidate for the 
office, there is no requirement to file a Statement of Organization.
The Rule prohibits the use of an exploratory committee by any individual more than once 
between general elections for state offices that are held in November of even-numbered years.



Advisory Opinion Request No. 2025-03 

Regarding whether a candidate committee must 
open a new bank account when the candidate is 

running for a subsequent term for the same 
office. 

Hearing for AOR 2025-03 to be held on 
November 13, 2025, if directed



Advisory Opinion Request 
2025-03 

Hearing for AOR 2025-03 to 
be held November 13, 2025, if 
directed



Executive Session

Commission Meeting
September 11, 2025
OK State Capitol, Rm. G-3



Currently in 
Executive Session

Commission Meeting
September 11, 2025
OK State Capitol, Rm. G-3



Returning Soon From 
Executive Session

Commission Meeting
September 11, 2025
OK State Capitol, Rm. G-3



Commission Meeting
September 11, 2025 10:00 AM
OK State Capitol, Rm. G-3



Case No. 2022-25 alleging violations 
of Campaign Finance Ethics Rule 2; 

State of Oklahoma ex rel. 
Oklahoma Ethics Commission v. 

Pittman, Oklahoma County District 
Court, Case No. CJ-2025-_____



Case No. 2024-5 alleging violations 
of Ethics Rules 2 and 3, Campaign 
Finance and Financial Disclosure



Case No. 2025-14 alleging violations 
of Ethics Rule 2, Campaign Finance. 



Case No. 2025-12 alleging violations 
of Ethics Rule 2, Campaign Finance.



Complaint C-25-16



No action on:

Case No. 2022-25 alleging violations of Ethics Rules 2, 
Campaign Finance.

Case No. 2025-14 alleging violations of Ethics Rule 2, 
Campaign Finance. Case No. 2025-12 alleging violations of 
Ethics Rule 2, Campaign Finance.



New Business

 
Adjournment



Next Regularly Scheduled 
Commission Meeting
October 9, 2025 @10:00 a.m.
OK State Capitol, Rm. G-3
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